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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Membfn ofM/s. Marpol Private Limited 

Report on the st■nd■lone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

GANESH DAIVAJNA & CO. 
CHAMTt'.M[0 ACCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying standalone Financial Statements of Mis. Marpol Private 

Limited which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March JI. 2021. the Statement of Profit 

and Loss. and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended. and notes to the financial 

statements. including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our infonnation and according to the explanations given to 

us. the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the informution required by the Act in 

the manner so required and give a true and fair view in confonnity witJ1 the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31. 

2021. and profit/loss. and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Buis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SA 's) specified under 

section 143( IOJ of the Companies Act. 2013. Our responsibilit ies under those Standards are 

further described in the Auditor· s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

section of our report. We arc independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 

Ethics issued b) the Institute of Chartered Accountants or India together with the ethical 

requirements 1hat are relevant to our audit of the financial statenll'nts under the provisions of 

the Companies Act. 20 I J and the Rules thereunder. and we have fullilkd our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion. 

Respon1ibility of M■oagement for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company· s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 

the Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone 

financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position. limrnciol 

performance. and cash nows of the Company in accordance with the 11ceou111ing principles 

generally accepted in India. including the accounting Standards spccilicd umkr secti,in 133 

of the Act. This responsibility also includes nmi111cnance of adequate rn.:c11unting records in 

accordance with the provisions or the Act fo r safeguarding or the usscts or the Company an:..d~~ .. 

for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregulurities; seh:etiun nnJ upplicntion or 
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ap~ropriute implementnlion nnd mninlennnce 111' necu1111ting pulicicH; ,nuking judgments und 
estmmtl'S lhnt urc rens1lnuhlc nrn.l prudent: nnd design. irnplcmenlutiorr tmd rnuintcrumce of 
adequutc intcnrnl tinum:inl controls. thut were opcruting effect ively for eniiuring lhc u.ccurucy 
and ~omp!etenl·ss or thl· nccount ing records. relevunl to the prepurution und present.al ion of 
the hnanl·tul stntcment lhut give a lruc nnd fuir view und ure free from mutcriul miHtatc:mcnl, whether due to fruud or error. 

In pn!paring the financial stutemcnts. munugcmcnt is responsible for assessing lhc 
Compnny's nbility to continue usu going concern. disclosing. us applicublc. mullers related to 
going concern and using the going concern husis ol' nccounling unless managcmenl either 
intends to liquidate lhe Compuny or 10 ceusc operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are nlso responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statement!! 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an 
auditor 's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards of Auditing will 
always detect a material misstatl.!ment when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be 
expected to i11tluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2016 (''the Order"). issued by the 
Central Govcmml.!nt of India in tenns of sub-section (1 1) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 201 J. we give in the Annexuri.: A statcmcnt on the matters specifo:d in paragraphs J and 
4 of the Order. to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the info rmation and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and be lid were necessary fo r the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our exuminotion of those books. 

c) The reports on the accounts of the branch offi ces of the Company uudited under Scl.'. tion 
143(8) of the Act by branch auditors have been sent to us und have been properly d~alt 
with by us in preparing this report. 
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d) The Hulnncc Sheet, the Stutcrnc11t or l'roli t uml Lo11ii. und the CuKh Flow Stulcmenl dc:uh 

with by this Rcrx111 nr·c in ngr~·c111c111 with the books of uccount. 

c) In ,iur ,,pi nh111. the uforesnid stundulonc; tinanciul Hlotcmen111 comply with the 

Accounting Stnndanls specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Ruic 7 of lhc 

Compunics (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

I) On thl' basis or the wrillcn rl.'prcscntalions received from lhc directors us on 31st March. 

2021 taken on record by the Boord of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 

on 31st March, 202 1 from being appointed as a di rector in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 

Act. 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the intcrnul linunciul controls over financial reporting of 

the Company and the opcruting effectiveness of such controls. refer to our separate 

Repon in "Anncxure B". 

h) \Vith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Rc:port in accordance 

with Ruic 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, in our opinion and to 

the best of our infonnation and according to the explanations given to us: 

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 

position in its financial statements - Rdcr Note 26; 

2. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 

for which there were any material fo reseeable losses. 

3. There has been no delay in transferring amounts. required to be transferred. to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

For Ganesh Daivajna & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg.No. 103054\V 

Place: Margao, Goa 
Date: 2911' April 2021 

UDJN:2l l26231AAAAEM9923 
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Anne:xurc A to the Audltora' Report 

The Annexurc referred to in Independent Audltora' Jteport to the member■ of the Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 1011, we report that: 

(ii (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantilati vc details and si tuution of fixed assets. 

(ii) 

(b) As i11fonned to us the tixed usscts have been physically verified by the management rcgulurly which in our opinion is reasonable having regard lo size of the Company and the narnre of lhe assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company. the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company. 
The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared with the book records were not material and have been dealt with in the books of accounts. 

(iii) According to the infonnalion and explanations given to us the Company has not granted unsecured loans lo the Companies. finns or other parties, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act. 201 3 and hence reporting under Clause (iv) of Paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable 
(iv) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made. 
(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits in contravention to Section 73 & 74 of Companies Act 2013. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal in this regard. 
(vi) The Companies Act. 2013 has prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148( 1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company and the company has been fol lowing the same. 
(vii) (a) According to the info rmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accnied in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund. ESIC fund. income tax, GST and other material statutory dues have bl!en regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account or employees' state insurance and duty of excise. 
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According to the infonnution nnd cxplanutlons given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of provident fund. ESlC fund. income tux. OST. Cc1111 ond other material statutory 
dues were in n~ars us ut 31 Murch 2021 tor u period of more than six month11 from the date they became payable. 

(b) Accoroing to the infonnation and explanations given to us. there are no dues of duty of 
customs which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any 
dispute. 

(viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution. 
banks. government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 
3( viii) of the Order is not applicable. Except cash credit account having limit 20 
crores. 

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) and tenn loans during the year. 
Accordingly. paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) According to the infonnation and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the 
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the course of our audit. 

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided for 
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by 
the provisions of Section 197, read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) 1n ow opinion and according to the infonnation and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(xiii) According to the informat ion and explanations given to us and based on ow 
examination of the records of the Company. transactions with the related parties are 
in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act ·where applicable and details of 
such transactions have been di sclosed in the standalone financial statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fu( ly or partly convertible 
debentures during the year. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and bused on our 
examination of the records of the Company. the Company has not l!nll!red into non­
cash transactions wi th directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

(xvi) The Company is not required 10 be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve 
Bank oflndia Act 1934. 

Place: M11rgao, Goa 
Dale: 291

~ April 2021 

For Ganesh Dah·ajna & Co 
Cbartncd Accountants 

' :l030S4W 

'-g;;;.;;rrc. ~ IVlljDll 

Pllrtn r 
M.No.12 231 

UDIN:ll l26231AAAAEM9923 
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Annuury • 8 10 the 1odsnsndsn1 Auditor'11 Report on •be 1n1srPBI Fln•ocfal Controll 
Un~er Clau~c ( i) of ~ub-s~ction 3 or Section 143 of the Comp1111ics Act, 20 I J ("the Act") We have 
aud!ted thc mtcmal hnnnc1al controls over tinnnciul reporting of Murpol Pvt Ltd ("the: Comp-,my'') as 
of -' 1st March 202 1 in conjunct ion with our audit of the stamlalonc tinancial statements or the Company for the year ended 0 11 thut dntc. 

Manag~mrnt 's R~.'ipun.dbilitv fnr Internal financial Controls 

The Company's mnnngcmcnt is resp<rnsible for cstnblishing and maintaining internal financial 
cont~ols _based on the internal control over financinl reporting criteria established by the Company 
considermg the essential components or internal control staled in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chancred Accountants 
of India ('!CAI'). These responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal linancia I controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efiicient conduct of its business. including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records. and the timely preparation of reliable financia l information. as required under the 
Companies Act. 2013. 

Auditors' Respo11sihili1,, 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act. 20 13, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the lns·titute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves perfonn ing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financia l controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The proced ures selected depend on the auditor's judgment. includ ing the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error. We belil!ve that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
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A compnny's intemal finnncial .0 1 1• 1 • Ii . 
1 

. . . . 
c 1 1 o over 11111nc111 reporting 1s a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance reunrdino Ill 1, bll' 1. • . • . 
o o c re 10 1ty o · I 11111nc1nl rcport111g und the preparation of financial 

statements for extemal purpose · , d · · · 
, , s Ill 01:cor ance with gcncmlly accepted uccounting pnnc1plcs. A 

company s internal financial control over linancinl reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that: 

(I) pe~in to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions ol'the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance thnt transactions arc recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use. or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the linancial statements. 

lnlterent Limltntio,u oflnfemnl Fina11cinl Co11tmls Over Fi11ancia/ Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject lo the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financia l reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 3 I st March 202 l. based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting. issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: Margao, Goa 
Date: 29th April 2021 

For Ganesh Daivajna & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

:t03054W 

a 
Part er 

M.No.t 6231 
UDIN:21126231AAA EM9923 
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L PRIVATE LIMITED 
TO llU: AhAHOAL STATD,f£HTS f'OR 11-IE Y£AA ENDED 31ST MAACK, 202:1 

~l. Yn)Orate lnformat.10.n 
Marpol Pfivate Limited (lhe. ·company') Is a private hmited company domiciled in India and 
incorPQrated under tht' p rovlsions o f the Companlu Act. The regls.tered office o f the Company IS 
louted at Margao. Goa. The Company i~ ptinclpaUy engaged m tht manufactutlng or Powder. 

The F,n.1.ncial Statements fo r the vHr ended 3 I st March, 202 1 have been reviewed and approved 
by the Board of Directo rs a t their meeting held on 29th April, 202 1, 

fi2!tit iWU>f pcrparatlOft 

I Su temt:nt of compliance 
The Fln.1ncial Statements have been prepared in J.ccordance with Ind ian A!Counting Standards 
(Ind AS) as per the Companie~ (Indian Accounting Stand ard s) Rules, 20 1 s notified under Section 
133 OI <..ompame$ ACl, 2013. {the 'Au') ,rncJ uthie1· 1clcvant p rovliion;; of the Act. 

Oetalli of the Comp,ny's Accoi.mt•l')Q hlr<iies c1re Included in Note I, 

2 FuncOonal and Presentat ion currency 

The Flnanc.ial Si.a.cements are presented In lnd,M Rupees (INR), which Is also the Comp,mv's 
funwonal cu11ency. All amounts have been ,ounded-off to tht nearest ,upeu, unless o theM'ise 
indlCJltd. 

3 Saisls of mu.surement 
The Flnancial Statements have been tl'epared on the historical cost basis t?)(CCPI for investments 
in mutual funds, non~lfade equity shares, bonds and provision tor employee: defined benefit 
plans. 

4 Use o f t:stlmates and Ju<fgenwnu: 

Critic,11 accounting Judgments ilnd Kev sources of est imation unctna1nw 

lhe preparation of the financia l muomcnts in confo rmltv wi1h the Ind AS requires m anagement 10 
make Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accoumlng policifli llnd 
the rtporttd amounts of assets, ltabU bes and dl5closures u u d.ltt of the flnanc.lal statemtnts 
and ,ht reponed amounts of ,he rtwnues and cxp,«n-ses for the ye.vs preffnttd. The estimates 
and assodate<f assumptions ire b.ued on historical e.xperiitnct ~nd other f.tctors thillt 41ft 
considered to be rtleva.nt. Actual results may differ from these: estimates under different 
assumptions and conditions. 

The otimates and undetfylng assumptions are 11vu~wed on 1n ongoing b.u,s. Revisions to 
accounting e.stJmuu are ,ecognised i, the period ,n which che tstim,ue. is revistd 1f the re.~hion 
affects only that penod, or in the period of the ffviiiOn and f1.1turt peuods if the revision afftcts 
bo th t urrent and future periods. 

1) Critlca.l Judgmenu 

fn ,he process ol .apptytng the CoMpa.ny's accounting pohc.les. management has made !he 
foUow1ng Judgments, which h~ tht most signtfiunt effect on the amount recognised in tht 
financ1.-il statements. 
Discount rate used to determine the c,mying ii.mount of the Company's defined benefit obligatlon. 
In dc tt rmloing 1he appropriate dlsc,unt rate ror p lans openated In India, the management 
consldc1s the intertH rates of government bonds In currencie1, consistent with the currencie5 or 
the post •employment btnef'a obhgadon. 



L PRIVATE LIMIT£0 
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS f'.OR THE vtA.R ENDED 31ST MAR.Qi, 202J 

Contingencts .tnd Commitments 

In the no,m,11 course of business, contingent Ua,b+nOes mill'( ariH: from litigations and other daims 
against the Company. Whert the potertial 11.abll,tles have a tcn,, probability of cryst.tlllslng or are 
very difficult to quantify re liably, we treat them as contingent IJabllit i.es. Such llablhties au~ 
disclos~d in the notes but a.re not provided for In the financ;ial s111u:ments. Although there can be 
no assurance rtgarding 1ht r,nal outcome of the legal proceedings. we do not expec-t them to 
have a matetlally adverse impact on our financial Position or profltablllty. 

II) Key Sources or Estimation uncena.lnty 
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sourcts of estimation un<:ertainty at 
the end of the r@porting period, lhat h.lVe a signlficam risk of causing a material adjustment ro the 
u1ryln9 amoun1s of assets and li.ablliti ts within 1he nt.xt flnanclal year are d iscussed below: 

Use:ful liWs of Property, Plant and Eql.ipment 
As descfibed in Nott I {3)(c}, the Company ,evlew5 the estimated use:ful lives at1d residual values 
o f prop-etty, plant and equipment at thi end of each reponing period. Ouring the current financial 
year, the ll"IM&gement determined that there wert no changes lO the useful lives and residual 
valut:s of the property. plant and equipment. 

Allowances for Doubtful Debts 
The Company makes alk>vancts for doubtful dtbts bolse<f -on an aue.ssmern of the recOYerabUrty 
of trade and othtr recelvab!u. The ldEnt1fication of doubtful debts tquires use of Judgments a.nd 
estimates. Where the expec1.111on Is different from the original estimate. such- difference will 
impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables. and doubtful debts expenses in th-e 
period in which such estimate ha, been changed. 

AUowances for Inventories 
Management rtv,ews the Inventory age listing on" periodic basis. This review involves compari$0n 
of che ca.rrvlng value of the aged inwntorv items with the respective net real,:i:able vJlue. The 
p urpose Is. to nscenain whe1her M allowance -s required to be made in the fin;incl:tl statements 
for any obsolett and slow-moving ilt ms. Manl'gement is satisfied tha.t adt.quatc a llowance for 
obsolete .and 5low·- mov;ng lnvtn1orie:s has been made in the financial statements. 

Llabllitv for salu Return 
In making Judgment for 1iabllity for sales return, ttle management considered ~he detailed cmeria 
for the recognition o f revenue from the sale of goods set out in Ind AS 18 and In p.arucular, 
whether the Company had transferred 10 the buye, the significant risk and rewards of ownership 
of the goods. rollowing the detailed Q.Jantificatlon of the Company's habllitv towards sales <eturn, 
the man..gtment is satisfied that sJS_nificant ttSk ind reward, Jwivt: been rransftrrtd ~nd that 
recognition of th, revenue 11' the cunent yea, is appropriate, in conjunction with the recognition 
of an app,oprlatt liability for salts ret11rn. 
Accruals fo r estimated product teturns. which 4re based on hlstorltal expenence of actuaJ sales 
re turns and .'.ldjustment on account of current market scenJrio il considered by Company to l>e 
rtliable estimate of fu ture sates returns. 



L PRIVATE LIMITED 
TO THE FINANCIAL S1'ATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENOEO 31ST MARCH, 202 1 

'JJ~..!!!;.s.t9DJifu;filtLA~cgc;io!lu!!nl!l!tl 119 eo Ii cie s 
I Classification of Assets and Liabilities 

Schedule Ill to the Ao •• requires assets and liabilities to be classified as eithet Current or Non­
current. 
(a} A.o asset shall be classified as current when il satisfies any of the follO\ving c<lter ia: 

(i) it ,s expected to be realised in. or is intended for sate ot consumption in, the Company's 
normal operating cycle: 

(ii) lt Is held primarily for Lhe purpose of be.ing traded; 

(iii) il is expected to be realised within twelve months aher the reporting date: or 

(iv) it is c;ash or cash equivalent unless it Is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 
a liability for at least twelve months after the repor'tin9 date. 

{b} AU assets other' than cur'rent assets shall be classified as non-curnot. 

(c) A liability shall be dassifled as currtnt when it satisfies any of the following cdtcda: 

(i) it Is expected to be seu led In the Compan~••s normal operat ing cycle: 

(ii} it is held primarily for the purpo~e. or being traded; 

(iii) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 

(Iv) the Company does rlot have an ~mconditional right to de.fer settlement of the liability for 
at least tw·elve months after the r'eporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at th(! option 
of the co1.mterparty. resolt In its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect 
its classification. 

(d} All liabilities other than current liabHlties shall be. classified as tlon-current. 

2 Operating Cycle 

An operating cycle Is the ti me between the. acquisition of assets for pr'ocesslng and their 
rea1isation in cash or <ash equivalents. The Company has ascertained the operati ng cycle as 
twe1ve months for the purpose of cur'r'ent or non-current dassifical lon of assets and 
liabilities. 

3 Property, Plant and Equipment 

(a) Recognition and Measut'ement 

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment ,hat qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially 
measured at its cost and then. <arr ied at the cost less accumulated depr'cclation and 
accumulated Impairment, if any. 

The cost of an item of Properly, Plrnt and Equipment compdses its purchase price, including 
import duties and oon - refundabll? purchase taxes, after deducting uadc discounts and 
r'ebatc:s and any costs directly attdbutable to bringing the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for tr to be capable of operating In the manner intended by management, The 
illitlal estimate of the costs of disnantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 
which it is located is included in the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment. 

The co$t of a self-constructed item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises the cost of 
materials and direct labor'. any 1Xher costs directly atulbutable to bringi ng the item to 
working condition for its intended .JSe, and estimated costs of dismantllng and removing the 
Item and restoring the Sile on which it is located. 

Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment onder conslr'uctior\ are disclosed as Capital W - in­
prQgrou.. luun of Capiti'1 Wr.,rk-in .. J'lml)(P<::.<;. i-. <arri(>d a, co.st usino lhc. 0r'if'lcioles oJ :' al · 9n 
of item of property, plant and equipmen~ ! ill it ,s r'eady for use, the manner in whi' ./ fleri ·1:-
by management. 1 -!1f·· ~, "' ·,, • 

-'v• I C•J . ,,~ _ _,. 
~'4r~Gii) ":'_yr ----
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lkks kontd) 
3 Property. Plint and Equipment (contd.) 

(b) Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent expt::nditlHe ls cn1>ita lised o nly If It Is probable that che ru tu re econornic benefits: 
associated with lhe expenditure w ill flow to the COmpanv. 

(c) Depredation 

Tht: depreciable amount ot an item of Propeny. Pla.n1 and lqulpmem is 1Uouud on • 
systematic basis oi.-er m ustful hfe. The Company provides deorec1ation on the straight line 
method. The Cornpany behevts that straight llnt method reRecu the pattern In which the 
asset's fvtuft economic bentflts act expected to be consumed bv the compa,1y, Based on 
lntermtl tt.thnical evalu.-tlon, the management believes useful lives or 1he assets are 
appropriate. The depreciulon me-thod is revle~d at least at uc.h financial year-end and, if 
the.re has bttn a significM,t <h•nge. in the tici,t.cted panern Of consumpuon of tht ruture 
economic benefits embod,ed In the asset, the method is ch•nged to reflt<1 the changed 
patttrn. Such a change is accounted for as ., Ch.tnge in an accounting estimate ,n acco,dance 
with Ind AS 8 • Accounting Pollclu. Changes In Accounting Estlmatts .rnd Errors, 

Each part of Jn Item ot Prope.ny, Plant and EQu1pmenl wnh a cost that is significant in relation 
to the tot._l (OSt of the item ii. dtprt<iated stp,ar11tly. 

The deprtc:.atlon charge for uch i:eriod is. recogn,sed in the SUttmenc of Prof1t and Loss 
unless It Ii included in the car!'Vmg amount of .tnother asset. 

The resldu1'1 value and the use1ul life of an asset is reviewed at least at each financlnl vear- eod 
and, If e1<ptcta1ions differ from pre"'ous estimates. the cha.ngC!(S} Is accounted for ,u a change 
tr'\ an Accounting escimatt in .cco1dance with Ind AS 8 • Accounting Polietu. Changes In 
Accounting £nimates and Errol$. nt tst1mattd ulefut IMS. for the (urrent and comPctrativ-t 
penodc; are as follows: 

Useful Lives useful l ives 

Asset Cius (in yeus) (In yta,s) 
- as per Companies - a.s estimated bv the 

Acl, 2013 Company 

Buildin"" 30-60 30·60 
Plant and c.-.ui ... mencs JQ-"Jn IO•ZS 
Furnitur·' ....... Fixtures 10 10 
Vehicles 1n 10 
Office fnul--mtnts s < 
Com-·1trs 3 6 3-6 
Assets for S<~ntiflC Research 10-20 20 
Assets on "'-eratin,. teas• NA s 

o eprectatlon on additlof'IS (disposals} is p,ov1dtd on a pro• rata basis I.e. from (upto} the date 
on which nnu is ,eady fo r u,t (disposed oro. 

Deprecia:tlon ch11rge for the ytu ts displayed u dep,eclation on tht face of Statement of Profit 
and LOSS. 

Le.asehold lands and le.1sehokt lmprow.ments are amortised ovu the primary period of lease. 

(d) Disposal 

The Ca((yln9 amount of an item of Proper1y, Plant and Equlpmen1 is derecognlsed on disposal 
Of wtien no future econom.c: btntfts are exPt(ted from its use o, disposal. Tht~a• ~oss 
ans1n9 from lhe.. dert'COQn1t'°n of an item of P,ope:ny, Plant and Equi0ment rs i tt, 
Statement of Profit and Lou wn«n the ittm 1s. Cltrtc;ognised. _ 

,,, 



r jl PRIVATE LIMITED 
/TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'TS fOR TiiE YEAR EN)EO 3tSf MARCH, 2021 

IS,. Ill: Significant Accounting Policies (conrd.) 
t 

4 Investment Property 
(a) Recognition and Measurement 

Land or building held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both rather 1han for use in 
the productio1\ or supply of goods or services or for' administrative purposes: or sate in the 
ordinary course of business is recognised as Investment Property. Land held for a currently 
undetermined future use i s also recognised as lnvestmenl Property. 

Ar\ investment propeny Is measured initially at il:s cost. The cost of an investment property 
comprises its purchase price and anydirect1y attribulable expenditure. Afler initial recognition, 
the Company carries the investment property at the cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment, if ar)Y. 

(b) Depreciation 
After i nitial , ecognition. the Company measures all of , ts Investment properly i n accordance 
with Ind AS 16 .. Property. Plant and Equipment requirements for cost model. The depreciable 
amount of an Item of investment pro:)erty is allocated on a systematic basis over its vseful life. 
The Company provides depreciation on the straight line method. The Company believes that 
scraight line. method reflects the pattern in which the asset 's future eco1,omic benefits are 
expected to be consumed by the ·company. Based on internal technical evaluation. the 
management believes Llseful lives or the assets are appropriate. The depreciation method is 
reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, If there has been a significant change in the 
expected pattern of cons1,.1mption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset , the 
method i s changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change 
in an accounting estimale In accodance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors. 

The depreciation charge for each peri od is generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

The rtsidual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at l east at each financial year-end 
and, if expectations di ffer from previous estimates, the change(s) is accoumed fot as a change 
in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Polides, Changes in 
Atco1,.1ntin9 Estimates and- Errors. The estimated useful li\les for the current and comparative 
periods are as follows: 

Useful Lives Useful lives 

Asset Class 
(in years) (in years) 

- as per Companies - as estimated by 
Act, 2013 the Company 

8u1ldinos 30-60 30-60 

(c) Fair Value 

Fair value of inveslment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer who ho1ds 
a recognised and relevan( professional qL•alification and has recent expedence i n the location 
and category of the investment proi::erty being valued. The fair va1ue of inveslment property is 
disclosed in the Note 3. 

(d) Cain or loss on Disposal 
Any 9~it1 or loss on d i sposal o f ~n h'l'VP.,:,,fmPnt PrnpPrty i c; , ecogniscd in the 
and Loss. 
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~lflcant Aq;oyntjng Policies (contd.) 

S Other Intangible Assets 

(a) Recognition and Measurement 

An lnt~ngible asset &s an identifuble non-monetary .ustt ,.,ithout physic.al subst.ince. 
lrnang,ble assets are initially measured at its cost and then carried at the cost IMS 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated 1moa1rment, if anv. 

Research and Development 

Research is origjnal and planned in\'estiga1 Ion undertaken wllh the prospect or gaining new 
scientific or techn1ul knowledge and understa.nding. E)(~nditure incurred on research of an 
&nternal projea 1s recognised as a■ expense fn Statement of Profit and Loss, when it is 
incurred. 

Development 1s the application of re~earch findings or other knO\..-ledge to a plan Or' dts19n for 
the production of new or substanlially Improved materials. devices. products. proce~ses. 
systems or $trvlces before the sta 1t of commercial production or use. An intangible asset 
arising frorn developmenl Is recognised if, and only if, t he foltowlng criteria are met: 

(a) 11 is technic.allv feaslb,le to complete tht ,ntang1ble asset so th.u 1t wm be availablt for 
use or sale. 
(b) the Company intends to complete the lnt•ng1ble asset ind use or sell it. 
(c) the Company has 1blllty to use or sell the intangible asset. 
(d) lhe Company can demonstrate how the Intangible asset wlll generate probable ruture 
economic benefits. 
Ce) the Company has adequate technical, Onanclal and other resources to complete the 
development and to use or sell the intangible asset. 
(f) the COn'lpany has abtllty 10 meuure rtl~bfy the expenditure •uributable to the 
intangible asset du11n9 ,ts development. 

t.xpencMure on researth 4<.Uvilit:") b 1tv;:,yn•se:d in 5t(l.tcment of rrofit .tnd LO~!':: :ii: ,ncvl'r.,d. 

(b) Subsequent Expenditure 

Sub$tquent e.xpend1tur~ Is capitalised only when ,t incre:asl?s the fulUre economic benefits 
embodied 1n the specific asse, to '-'"-ich it rtl11es.AU other ex.pend1ture.. Including expenditure 
on internalty geoerat,d 9ooch\ ·11 and brands. Is recognised 1n Statement of Profit and loss as 
Incurred. 

(c) Amortisation 

The Company amortises Other lntaigible Assets on the straight line method. The Company 
believes that straight li11c method rene:cts the patte,n in which the asset's future economic 
benefits are expected to be consumed by tht Company. The amortisation method 1$ reviewed 
I.I lease .it each financial year-end and, 1f there has been a slgn,ficant change Jn the expected 
pauem of consumpt.on of the futul't econom,c benefits embodied ,n the asset, the mtthod i s 
changtd to reffect the ctwnged pa:tern. Such 1; cha.n9(" is accounted for as a chan9t in an 
accounting estimate 1n accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policits. Changes 1n Accounting 
Estlml'ltes and Errors. 

The ruldual value and 1he: useful life of all asset is reviewed at least at each financial year-end 
and, 1f expectations differ from pre1.1ous estimates, the changt(s) is accounted for as l change 
in 1n ucounting estumte in acco·danc:e w,th Ind AS 8 - Accountmg Policies, Changes in 
Accountmg Estimates a.n.d Errors. The estimated U$eful fives as estimated by management ~re 
as follows: 

Asset Class 

Software 
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A 111: Significant Accounting Policies (COOtdJ ,. 
6 Non- current assets or disposal group held for sale 

Non .. current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities are classified as held for 
sale if it i s highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sal e rather than through 
continuing use. 

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount 
and fa ir value less costs to s<:11. Any resultant loss on a disposal group is allocated fi rst to 
goodw.11 , and then to remaining assets and liabilities on pro rata basis, except that no loss is 
allocated to inventories, financial assets. deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets, and 
biological assets, which <:ontinue to be measured in accordance with the Company•s other 
ae<:ounting policies. Losses on initial classi fication as held for sale and subse4uenc gains and 
losses on re-measurement are recogni sed in Statemenl of Profit and Loss. 

Once assets classified as held- for- sate, then Property, Plaot and Equipment, Investment Property 
and Other hnangible Assets are no longer required to be depreciated or amortised . 

7 Employee Benefits 

(a) Short - term Employee Benefits: 

Short-term employee benefit obl igations are measured on an undi.scoumed basi s and are 
expensed as the related service is provided . A liability is recognised for the amount expected to 
be paid e.g ., under short .. term cash bcnus, if l he Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by t he employee, and the 
amount of obl igation can be estimated reliably. 

(b) Post-Employment Benefits: 

Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post- employment benefit plan under which an entity pays 
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to 
pay further amounts. 

(I) Provident Fund 

The elig ible employees of the Company are entitled to receive- post employment benefits in 
respect of providem fund, in which both the employees and the Company make monthly 
contributions at a specified percentage of the employees' eligible salary. The contributions 
are made to the Regional Provldert Fund Commissioner (RPFC) which are charged to the 
Stalemenc of Profit and Loss as incurred. 

In respeCl of c.omribution to RPFC, the Companv has no further obligations beyond making 
the contribution, and hence. such employee benefit plan is classified as Defined Contribution 
Plan. The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 
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le Ill: Sianlfkant Accounting Policies (cont dJ 

' 7 Employee Benefi ts (contd .) 

(b) Post-Employment Benefits (contd.): 

Defined contribution plans (contd.) 

(II) Superannuation 

The eligible employees of 1he Comi:any are entitled to receive post employment benefi ts in 
respect of superannuation fund in which the Company makes annual co,,tribution at a 
specified percentage of the emplowes' el igible salary (currently 15% of employees'eligible 
salary). The contributions are made co the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). 
Superannuation is classified as Defined Contribution Plan as the Company has no further 
obl igations beyond making the contribution. The Company's contribution is reco,gnisect as 
;m pxnPn<f> in thP <;t~ tpmp,nr nf Prnfir ;,nrl I no:-.. 

Defined Benefi t Plans 
A defined benefit plan is a post- employment benefit plan other than a defined contri bution 
plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of denned benefit plans is calculated by 
estimating the amount of future benefit (hat employees have earned in the current and prior 
periods. discountinq that amount and deductinq the fair value of any plan assets. 

The calculation of defined benent Obligation is performed annually by a quali fied actuary 
using t he projected unit e<edit method. When tile calculation results i n a potential asset for 
the Company. the re,ogni .sed asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits 
available- i n the form of any fu:ure refunds from the plan or reductions in future 
contribullon.s to t he plan ('the asset ceiling'). In order to calculate the present value of 
economic benefits, consideration Is given to any minimum funding ,equirements. 

Remeasurements of the net definEd benefit 1iability, which comprise actuarial gains and 
losses, the re turn on plan assets (txcluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceil ing (if 
any. excluding interest), are recognised in Other comprehensive Income. The Company 
determines the net i nterest expensi? (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for 
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at 
the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit l iability (asset), taking 
•into account any changes i n the ner defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a 
result of contri butions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses 
.-.. 1:ul'>rl to (IQflr'IQfl h"""fi t n l~n<. ::ir~ r'l)l"nf'\r'li<i,rl i ,l "-t::irPmPnt nf Pr'f'>fit ::inti I n c:<: 

When the benefits of a plan are changed o r when a plan is curtai led, the resulu,19 change in 
be nefi t that relates to past setvice ('past service cost' or 'past service gain") or the gain or 
loss on c:ur lallment i s recognised immediacely in profit or loss. The Company recognises 
oains and losses on {he settlement of a defined benefit olan when the settlement occurs. 
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Note Ill: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 

7 Employee Benefits {contd.) 

Defined Benefit Plans (contdJ 

Gr.ttulty 

The Company has an obligation towa,ds 9ratu1tv, a dl?fined benefit retirement plan covering 
eligible employees. The plan p,cwldes a lump sum payment to vested employees at 
retirement. death white In emplo>,ment o r on tefminatlon of l;!mplo-Vment of an amoulll 
equiv~lent to IS days to one month sala,y payable for each completed year or service or p,;trt 
thereof in excess of six months depending upon catego,y of tmployee. Vesting occurs upon 
completion of five years of service. The Company has obtained insurance policies with the 
Life lnsv,ance Corporation of India (UC) and makes an annual conwbution to LIC for 
amount$ notified by UC. ihe Companv accounts for gratuily benefits payable in future 
b1ucd Ol'I an 1r,dcpcr'ldc nt ¢Ktcrn.ll .:c1u:,.ri.1.I v.\lu.\tion carried out ;it thG Gnd o f thr: year uslr19 
the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses a ,e ,ecognised as Other 
Comprehensive lncom~. 

(c) 0th.er Lo ng-term Em ployee Benefits - Compensated Absences 
The Company provides fo r encash111ent of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rule~. 
The employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future 
(.!ncashment / availment. The Company makes provision for compensated absences based 
o n an independent actuarial \!aluatlon carried o ut at the end of the year. Actuarial gains and 
losses a ,e recognised in the S1atemE!nt o f Profit and Loss, 

8 Inventories 

(a} Measurement o f Inventory 

The Company measures its invenco1les at the lower of cost and net realisable vah1e. 

(b} Cost of Inventories 
The cost of inventories shall comprise a ll cosls of pu,chase. costs of conversion and other 
costs Incurred in bringing the invemorles to their present location and c::ondilion. 

Th e costs of purchase cf invenlorie:s comprise the purchase price, import duties and o~her 
taxes {other than those subsequ~nrly recoverable by the emlty from che taxing authoritiu). 
and tfansport, hancmng and other cos1s directly attrlbutable to the acquisition o f finished 
goods, materials and services. 1rade discounts, rebates and othet simila r h ems are 
d educted in determining th<: costs of purchase. 

The costs of conversion of inventories include costs dlrecttv re la1ed to the unils o r 
production and a systemati<" a llocation of hx.ed and variabfe produWon overheads that are 
incurred in corwe1tino materials into fin ished Qoods. 
Other costs are included in the con of inve,nodes o nly to the extent that they are incurred 
in brinqinq the inventories to their oresent loca.tion and condition. 

ihe cost o f inventories is assigned by weighted average cost formula. The Company uses the 
same cost fo rmula for all lnve,noriu having a similar nature and use to the Company. 
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Note 111: S.innifirllnt Accounring PoliritS kontCJ 
8 Inventories {Contd.) 

(c) Net ft::tlisabte value 
Net realisabtc v~h.se Is the estimated selling prlce in the ordin.-irv (oun,e of business fess the 
estimated costs of completion and the esumated costs ne(essarv to make the sale. Net 
realisable value Is ascertained for each dem of inventorit-S •Nlth reference to the selllrtg prices 
of related finished products . 

The practic:e of writing mvento,ies •fown below cost to net teJlisable value is consistent with 
the vi<:w that assets should not b~ carried in excess of amounts expected to be realised from 
theil sale or use. tnventottes Me usually written down 10 net realisable valve item by Item. 
Estimates of net realisable value o f finished goods at1d stock-in- trade a,e based on the mo'lot 
rel!able evident~ avail.tbte a t the t ime the e stimates are made, of the ;lll'IQunt the inventories 
a ,e expected to rea.l ise. These e.stim<'ltts t1tke Imo consideration nuc1ua1ions of price or (OM 
directly relati,,g to e1;-ena 0<<1.irrin9 after ~he end of the r>t l10d to the extem that Sv( h events 
confi1m condlllons existing :it t he e,1d of the period. Muerials and other supplies held for use 
in the pcoduction of invenxones ar? not Wl'i ttcn down below co'lot if the finished products in 
,,:hlch they will b, incoq>orated a rt expected to be. .sold at or above (0$\. However, when a 
decline in the t,rice of materials indicates lhat the co.st of t h~ finished products exceeds ne.t 
realisable v11.lt.1e, the materials arc \\fitten <Jown to net realisable v.;ilu,e. 

Amount of any t lwersal of writc- (lo,yn of Inventories sMll l)e ,ecogni.sed as an ~xpense as 
when the event occurs. 
A ne-.,· assessment is made of nEt realisabl, valve In each subsequent period. When the 
Ctrc tJmstances thal pfev\ously caused invc:ntolies to be written down below cost no longer 
exist or when there IS clear evidentt of M 1llcrease in net realisable value because of cMngcd 
economic <if<tJmstanci?s, the amo1.nt of the write-down h revetsed. Amounts such ,cversed 
shall b-t cecongnlsed as a reduC\ion hl 1he a mount of invtntorles recongnised a~ an expense 
in the period in which r(!VCfS~I OCCLrs . 

(d) Valuat ion or Spare part$, stand- by equipments ind servicing equipments 
Spare pa.ts. stand-by equipment and se1vi(.h,g equipment arc ,ecogl'l is-ed as Property. Plant 
and Equipment ,f and only if it h i,f'obable that future economic benefils associated with 
them will flow to the Company ;ind their cost can b-e me~sured reliably. Oth~rwise su<-h Items 
are cla.sslfied and recognised a.s l/\\'entory. 

9 Ca.sh and Cash Equivalents 

Cash compriSt$ ca.sh on hand and demat1d deposits. Cash t<iuivalents ate short - term, highly 
liq1,1i(I in,;enments that art reacl,ly co,wertible to known amounts of cash and which a.re subject 
10 an insignificant risk of changes in -..alue , Ca-sh eQvivalems are held fo r t he p1.upose or meeting 
short-term ca'!oh commitmems rather than fo1 in•,esvnent or other p1.11poses. For all Investment 
to q uality as a <ash equivalent it mu~: be 1eadily convertible to a k.now,l amount of cash and be 
subject to an hlSlgnlfkant risk of changes In value. Therefou:, all in-testment normally Qvalifies 
as a cash equivalent only when it has a shon maturity of, say. 1hree months or fess £,om the date 
of acquisition. 'B.ank 0•1t1drahs which are repayable Oil demand form an intt9r3I pan of the 
Company's cash management, hence bank overdraf{S are Included as a component or 
ca sh and ca.sh tqviv.-ilems. 

l O Government Gr~nts 
Covernment 9,M tS afe assistance by 9overnmei'11 in the form or uansftrs of resources to the 
Companv in fttum for past or future compliance with certain conditions. relating to the operating 
activities of the Company. GovernrnO"'lt grants are not be recognised umd there is r~ason.ible 
assvrance that the Company will coriply w\th the conditions anachmg to thern and the grants 
will be received. Govctllment grants are recognised In. Statement of Profit ;tl'ld Loss o n a 
.systemat ic basis over 1he petiods in which the Company recognises (I~ expenses the related 
costs for whi(.h the grants are intendd to compertsate. 
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/ate 111: Significant Accounting Pollcles (co.n.td ,l 
1 l Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

A p,·ovision is recognised if. as a result of a past evenl, 1he Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that c~n be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required t<> seule the obligation, Provisions are detNmlned by 
discounting the expected future cash flows (representing {he best esti mate or the 
expenditure r.equired to settle the pfe>ent obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pr~-ta.x 
rate that reflects <:urrent market assessmems of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 
ExpectE:d fulure operating losses are not provided for. 

Warranties 
A provision foe warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are soid. 
The provi!lion i~ based Oil tcchnic..-1 ~v.ilu .;!\ion, hittorlc~I warranty d.at~ .ind .t w"ighting o f all 
possible outcomes by their associated probabilities. 

Restructuring 

A provision for ,estfuctunng is reccgnised when the Company has approved a detailed 
forma1 restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been 
announced publicly. 

Onerous contracts 
A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived 
by the Company from 1he contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its 
obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract Is measured at the 
present value of the lower of the expEcted cost of terminating ttle contract and the expected 
net cost of conti nuing with the coniract . Before such a ptovlslon Is made, the Company 
recognises any impairment loss on tht assets associated with that contract. 

12 Revenue Recognition 
Effeaivc I Aprll, 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 1 15 'Revenue from contracts with 
customers·. 
Revenue is recognised to depict the trt'.lnsfer of promised goods or services to ,ustomefs In 
an amount that reflects the considuation to which tha entity expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is adj usted for es~lmated customer returns, 
rebates and other similar allowances. Revenue from sale of goods is recognized as per below 
5 step model: 
• Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with J. customer 
• Step 2: Identify the performance obligation In conHact 
• Step 3: Oetermine the transaction price 
. Step 4: Allocate the transaction prlct to the performance obligations in the comract 
• Step S: Recognise revenue when (01 as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation 

Under Ind AS 11 s, tevenue Is recognized when (or as) a p,e1'formance obligation is satisfied, 
Le. when 'control' of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation 
is transferred to the customer.Le. at which time all the following conditions are satisfied: 
• The company has transferred to the buyer the .significant risk & rewards of thE ownEr~hip 
of the goods 
• The company retains neither con1inuin9 managerial involvement to the degrEe :usually 
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold 
• The amount of rewmue can be measured reliably 

ll iS pfobable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 
comp-any and 
'fhe cos t s 1ncurr@.d or to ba incuHUd il"I fespect o f the trans::1r.tion r.;in l,P m1>;1<.urPf -,, 

1<:· 
,i 
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p. Ill : Significant Accounting Policies (contcJ.l 
12 Revenue Recognit ion (contd.) 

Interest Income 

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest mechod as set out in Ind AS 109 -
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, when it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with the transact on will flow to the Company and the amount of t he 
revenue can be meas1.1red reliably. The effective interest method is a method of calculating 
the. amortised cost of a financial asse: or a financial liability (or group of financial assecs or 
financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the 
relevant petiod. 

Royalty Income 

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the 
relevant agreement when h is probable that the economic benefits associated \'\•ith the 
transacti on will flow to the Company and the amount of the revenue can be measured 
reliably. 

Dividend Income 

Dividend income Is recognised when r ighl to receive payment i s established and it is 
probable that the economic benefits associated wlth the transaction will flow to the 
Company and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

13 Foreign Currency Transactions 

Functional currency ,s the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 
Company operates whereas presentation curtency is thecurrency in which the financial 
srntements are presented. Indian Rupee i s the functional as well as presentatiOfl currency for 
the Company. 

A foreign currency transacti on 1s recc,,ded. on initial recognition in the functional currency, 
by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the funcuonal 
currency and the Foreign currency at the date of the transauion. 

At the end of each reporting period. foreign cu,r(HKY monetary items are translated using 
the closing rate whereas non-monetary items lhat are measured in terms of hi storical cost 
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date o f the transaction; 
and non-monetary items that are 1neasured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates al the date when the fai r value was measured. 

Exchange di fferences ari sing on the settlement of monetary Items or on translating 
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial 
recogniti on during the period or in previous F,nanclal Statements are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. When a gain or Joss on a non ­
monetary item 1s recogni sed in Other Comprehensive Income, at1y e)(changc component of 
that gain or loss i s recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. Conversely, when a gain or 
toss on a non-monetary item is recognised in Statement o f Profit and Loss, any exchange 
component of that gain or loss is recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 
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ll-~!9!!!!ill,M!LlillJl.YID.lJlllQ_fQJicies (contd ) 

Income tax 
Income ta:x comprises current tax and deferred tax expense. It is recognised In Statement of 
Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item 
recognised directly i r) Equity or in Other C.omprehensive Income. 

Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable o r receivable on the taxable income o r loss for 
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable 10 respect of previous years. The 
amount of current tax rerlects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received 
after considering the uncertainty, 1r any re lated to income taxes. It is measured using tax rnces 
(and tax laws) enacted or substantive1y e,acted by the reporting date. 

Deferred tax 
Oef•Ufed rax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and habilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for 
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also r~cognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax 
credits. Deferred lax is not recognised for: 

a temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabililies In a t(ansaction 
that i s nol a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or 
loss at the time of the transaction: 

b caxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred tax assels are recogni sed to the extent t hat it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available agai nst which they can bl! u :>ecJ. The ~xi)tt:m.t: of unu :::,t:L.I lax lo:::.:::.o:::, i:::, :::.l1vn9 
evidence that future taxable pro fi t may not be avai lable. Therefore, in case of a history of recent 
losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only lO the extent that it has sufficient 
taxable temporary di fferences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit 
w,11 be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets -
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to 
the extent that it is probable / no longe· probable respectively tha\ the related tax benefit will be 
realised . 

Oefer, ed tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period wtten the asset 
is realised or the liabll itY is senled. based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the repor1ing date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner' In which the Compa,,y ex.pee.ts, at the reporting date. to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabili ties. 

Der erred tax assets and liabil ities are offset if there is a legally enfol'ceable right to offset current 
tax l iabilities and assets. and they relate to income taxes levied by che same tax authority on the 
same taxable enti ty, or on different tax entities. but they intend co settle cu,rent tax l iabilities and 
assets on a net basis or their tax assets a.nd liabilities will be realised slmul(aneousty. 
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J_l: Siqnif ig nt Accounting Policies (contd.) • I S Lease 
Leases of Property, Plant and Equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the 
ri sks and rewards of ownership are da,s$ified as Finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at 
che lease's Inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value or the 
minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are 
included in borrowings or the financial liabil ities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated 
betvveen the liabi lity and finance cost. Th finance cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss over che lease period so as to p,oduc.e a constam periodic ,ate o f Interest on the rnmainlng 
balance of the liabiliry for each period. 

At inception or an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is o r contains a lease. 
At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other 
consideration required by such an a ,rangement are separared into those fo, the lease and those 
for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If ic is concluded fo, a finance lease 
that it i s impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a ilability are 
recognised at an amount equal to the fail value of the underlying asset. The liability is reduced as 
payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is reco9nised using the 
incremental borrowing rate. 

Leases in which a significant portion of ti e risks and rewards of owne,ship a re not transferfed to 
the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operat1t19 leases 
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to Sla tement or Profit and Loss on 
suaight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments a re structured to increase in 
line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost 
increases. 
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~e lit Slanlffcant Accountino Policies <contd.) 
16 Financial Instruments 

(a) Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receiviblcs and debt secur,ttc-s issued are ln1t1ally r ecognised when they are originated. All 
other financial assets and flnanoal liabilities ate initially re<ognlsed when the Company becomts 
.i pany to the con1ractuat termi of the instrument. 
A financial asset or financial liability i s initially measured at fair value plus, for an Item not at Fair 
Value rh,ough Pront and Loss (FVTPl), uansaction costs that are directly anr,butable to its 
c1.cquisition or issuC?. 

(b) Classification ind subsequent measurement 

fmancic1I asse1s 

On Initial recognition, a financl•I asset is measured at 
... amortised coit, 

- F.air Value through Olhtr Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - debt investment; 

.. Fa.tr Value through Other Comprthetsive lncomt - equity 1nvutmen1. or 

- FVTPI. 

Finaocial assets are t1ot reclass,r1td subsequent lo their 1011,al recognition, txcept if and in tht 
pedocl the Company ch·anges its buslress model ror managing flnanc,al assets. 

A financial asst1 ls measured at amor:lsed cosl If it mee.ts both o( the followlng conditions and 1s 
not designated a.s at FVTPL; 

- the asset Is held t,\'ithin a bus,ness modet "hose objeal'Vt is to hofd assets to colfec1 
contractual cosh flow-s: and 

.. th(> contranual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and Interest on the ptinclpal amount outstanding. 

A debt investment is measured •t F\OCI if •t muts both of tht follov.ing cond,11ons and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 

.. the asset IS held within a business model whose objective Is achieved by both coll-ectln9 
cont(actual c:ish flows and sclhng financial assets: and 

- the contracl ual lerms of the Onanc1al asset give rise on specified dates co cash flows that art 
s°'ely paymenu of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

On 1n1tial re<:ogn,t1on of an equity iwe.stment that iS not Mid for trading, the Company may 
irrevocably elett to present subsequent changes in the uwestment'$ fair value in OCI (designated 
as FVOCI - equity investment). This election IS m3de on an investmcnt•by•investment basis. 

All final'lcial aueH not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above art 
meuured :u M'PL This includes all denvauve financial assets. On initial rtcognition. the 
Company may ,rrevocabty designate a financial asset that otherwise meets 1he requirements to 
be measured at ,1mortised cost or at FVOC1 as at FVTPl if doing so e.hminate1 or s19mficandy 
reduces an ac:<:ountm9 mismatch that would Olherwise arise. 



,..RPOL PRIVATE UMITEO 
.OT'E.S TO THC FINANCIAL STATtMtNTS FOR. THE V£Alt EN)E[> 31ST MAAC!-4, 202:1 

t!ote._ IIJ: Siaoi6C30t Accountlng_f_olid.e!i.~ 
16 finandaJ lnsuuments (co·ntd.) 

(b) Classification and subst,qvent measurement (contd,} 

Financial assets: Subst;quent measurement and gains and losses 

Finan<:ial asseu at FvrPL These asstts iue s1.1bseqt1emly measured at fair valve. Ntt gains and 
losses, in<luding any Interest or di\•idcnd in(ome, ate recognised in 
Statemertt or Profit and loss. 

Financial assets at These t'ISSttS a,e subsequently measured at amortised c.ost using the 
amorused cost effe,1ive Interest method, The amo,t1sed COSI " reduced by 

impa.lrment losses. fntertst in<ome, foreign exchang, gain:, and 
losses and impairmtnt aie re<ognlsed in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Any gain er loss on <1ere,09nltion is recognised in Stateme,u of Profit 

, ' 
Debt These as.stts are svbseq,ue,,rly meas.ured at fai1 \'<llue. h<iteresl Income 
investmtn(s at FVOCI under the tffe(hvt imerest method~ foreign exchange gains and 

tones :ind im1>a1rment are recoqnise-d in Sl:rttmen1 of Profit a nd Loss. 
Other ne1 gains and los.ses are re<:091tised In OCI. On dereco9nit ion, 
gains and losses a<<vmulated h'l OCI are reclass.ified to Statement or 
Profit and Loss. 

Equ1ty in1.1estmtnts 11.1 These as.s~ts. are subs(!(luen1ly measured at rair value. Dividends 3.tf-

F"VOCI ri!cognis.ed as inc,ome 1n S1atement of Profit and t.oss unles!'> the 
dividend ~leartv represems a recovery of p~Ht of the cost of the. 
investment. 01he, net gains and losses are ree-09nised In OCI and are 
not reclasufted to Statement of Profit Jl'l<l l MS. 

Financial liabilities.: Cla,ssifi<atlon, s~bsequent measuremtnt and gains and losses 

Financial Ii.abilities ate c.lasslfled as measured at M1onised c-0s1 or MPl. A financial li<1bil1t'( is 
classified -,s at FVTPL If 1t Is classitie:5 as h4!1d for U.'lding, or it ts a derivative or it is designate<! 
as su<:h on Jnitla1 recognitJon. flnarr::ial liabilit ies at FVTPL are measured at fo ir valve and ne.i 
gains and losses, inclvdin9 any inte,,!St expense. are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
01her nnandal liabilities are subsequent!'>' measured at amo1tistd cost using the effective interesl 
method. lnteiest t)(ptnse an.d foreign exchange 9ain~ Md losses -are recognis.ed in Statement of 
Profit and Loss. A,w ga,n or loss on derecognition is also ,e,ognised In Statement 
of Profil .ind Loss. 

(c) Oerecognition 

Financial as.sets 

The Company d,1t(09nises a fmanc al asset when the contrac:tv31 t ights ,o the cash flows. from 
the finan<ial asstl expire. or f t trarsfers the ri9hts to rect111e the contractual cash flows ,n a 
tn:1.nsaclion in which substantially all of the 1iskt and .-ewa:ds of ownership of the finan<ial asset 
are trans;erred or in which the Comcany neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of owners.hip and does 
not retain conuol of the finan<ii!I as.s~t. 
If the: company en1ers Imo transaclions whe1tby it tr3,nsft!S assets recognised on its balance 
sheet, but retains euher all or s.vbst<.nti.al!v all of the nsks and rewards or the transforr,d asstlS, 
the 1r;u1sfer1ed assets are not dececo;nise(l. 

Financial 11:t.bilitles 

Tht Company de recognises a financQI liability whe,1 Its comractual obligations an.' dischar9ed or 
cancelled. 01 expire. 

The comoany also derecognises a financial liabilitv when l!S terms are modified a nd th, cash 
flows unde:, the modified 1erms au: substantially different. In this case. a new tinancial liability 
based on the modified tetm$ is , ecognls.ed at fair value. The difference bt:tween the carryi119 
amount o( the finan(l:tl liablhty ex1lnguished and the new financit1l liability vli1h modified terms is 
recognised in Slattmem of Profit and los.s.. 

(d) Offsetting _. 
FinM(ial O.$Stts aod financial liabilities are ollsel Md the l\el amoun1 pre!.MleCI in me ,~!'~~:,,~ 
sheet vlhen, and only when. 1he Conpany <vner'ltly has a legalty enforceable right to s off \Ill! 
amounts and it intends. either to Sl?Ule them on a net ba!.,s or 10 realise 1be asset and ehle th 
!lablhty simuhaneously. · • • 
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,,te 111: Sianific11nt A«ounrioa Policies (c:.ontdJ. 
17 Borrowing Cost 

i he Company capitalises borrowing costs that are dirtcllv anfibmable to che acquisition. construction or 
production of a. qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. The Company recognises o ther 
bormwlng costs as an expense in the peri~d in which it Incurs them. Borr()'.\llng costs ate interest and 
other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds including exchange 
diffotences arising from fon1i9n currenc-, borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an 
adiustment to inteu~st costs. 
A qualifying asset is an asset ,hat necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale. 

18 Earnings Per Share 

Basic earning$ per share 
Thi> Company calculates baste eauunas p?r sha,e amounts for profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
equity holders and, if presented, profit or loss from ('Ontinuing ope;ati01lS attributable to those equity 
holders, 
8,asic earnings per sha1e Is calculated by dividu\9 o rofh or !OS.$ attributable lO o cd maiy equity holders 
(the numerator) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (the denominator) 
during the period. 

The weighted ave,a.ge oumber of ordina,,. shares outstanding dunng the pedod and for all periods 
presented shall be adjusted for tverns, other than the conversion of potential orcflnary .shares, that have 
changed the number of ordinary shares ou1standln9 without a corrt?sponding change in resources. 

Diluted earnings per share 
The Comp;uw calculates diluted ea1mn9s ?tr share amoums for profit o, loss attributable to ordinary 
equitY holders a.nd. if presented, profit or loss from continuing operations attributable to those tQuity 
holders. 

For the purpose of (atct.Jlating diluted earnings pe, sha,e, the Company adjusts profil or loss attnbutable 
to ordinary E:QUity holders. and tht wei9ht(d average number of shares outstanding, for the effects of a.II 
dilutive potential ordinary $hates, it any. 

fo r the purpose- of catculattng diluted earnings per sha,t, the weighted average nvmbet of O(<llnary 
shafts calcvlated for calculating basic earrings per share and adjusted the we(ghted ave,age number of 
ordinary shares that would be issued on th? conversion of all the dilutive 
potential ordinary shares into ordinary stares. Oilutlve pot.ent.ial ordinary shares are deemed to have 
been converted into ordinary shares at the beginning of the pet'1od or, If· later. the. date of the issue of 
the pottnual ordinary shares. 



.POL PRIVATE LIMITED 
ft-S TO nu FINANCIAL SfATOAENTS FOR THE YEAR. O DED l l ST MARCH. 2021 

Nott jll· Slaolficant AccoyntiOO Policies (contdJ, 

1 9 Impairment Loss 

Impairment of Flnanc.ial Assets 

The Company recognises loss allowances fol' expected credit tosses o n: 
- financial assets measured at amortised c:;ost; and 
- financial assets measua:d at FVOCt-- debt investments. 

At ea, h feporttng date. the Company assesses whether financial assets U ((ied 3t amortised 
cost ace credit•impaired. A flnanc:ia1 asset is 'cred1timpaired' when o ne or mo re events that 
have a detrimental impact o n the estimated future cash flows of the financial asse1 have 
occurred. 
In accord ance with hid AS 109 - Financial hlstruments, the Co mpany follows 'simp!Uied 
approach' for tccognh!on of impairmellt loss allowance on uadt receivables. The appllcation 
of ,impliflcd appro.:ich doe~ not r~Q11fr,a tha Comp;i.ny to v.ir.l( ,:h:in!JP~ in r"rf>rl it (Jsk. Rather. it 
r<!cognlses. impairment loss a llowance based o n lifetime expected atdlt loss at each repoctin9 
date, right from its Initial recognition. 

The gross carrying ,,moun1 of a fin<1ncial asset is written off (ehher partially or in foll) to the 
exttnt that there is no realistic pt::>spect of recovel'V, This is g enerally the case when the 
Company determin~s that the debt,:,r does no t have assets or sources of income that could 
generate sufficient cash flows to rel)ay the amounts subject to the write•off. However, fil'lancial 
assets that are written off could still be subject to etlforcement activities In order to comply 
with the Company's procedvru for recovery of amounts due. 

Impairment of Non Financial Assets 
An impairment loss is the amount by v1hich the carrying a.mount o f an asset or a cash­
generating u nit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount o f an asset or a cash 
generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of d isposal and its value in use. Falt 
value is the price that woutd be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liablllty In an 
orderly trnnsaction between market participants at the measurement date, Value in use is 
based o n the estimated future cast flows. discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount r<ne. 

The Co mpany asstsses a.t the end of each reporting period whether there is any indic,uion 
thal an asset is impaired. In assessing whether there is any Indication that an asset may bf: 
impaired, the Companv considers. :.xte.rnal as well as Internal Sou,ce of Informatio n. If any 
Sl•Ch indication tl<.IStS. the Company tstlmates. the recove.rable~ amount fo r the indMdual 
asset. If, and only if, the reCO\'C:rab~ amount of an asst.t Is less than its carrying amount, the 
cauying amount of the asset is rEduced to it.S recoverable amount. An- Impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit o, loss, unless the asset is cauied at revalued amount In 
acco,d ance with another Standard. 

If h is not po ssible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Company 
determines the recoverable amount of lhe cas.h generating unit to which the asset belongs 
(the ,,sset's <:ash-generating unit). A <.ash-generating unll is the smallest id entiflablt grouo of 
assets that generale:s ca.sh inf.lows that ar~ tar9elv independent of the cash Inflows from other 
assets or 9,oup:; of assets. lhe C<•mpany recognises impairment los.s for a cash .. 9ent:ratio9 
unit if, and only if, the recoveratle amo unt of the cash-generating u nit is less than the 
carrying amount of the cash -geneu.ting unit. The Company allocatts impairment loss of cash-
9enerat1n9 units first to the. carry ng amount of goodwill allocated to the cash-generating 
units, if any, and then. to the other assets of the cash-generating units pro rala on the basis 
of the carrying amount of each asstt In the cash-generating unit. These feductions in carrying 
amounts shall be treated as impairment losses on Individual assets and recognised 
a«ordingty. 

~ ,, 
_,•,,GA.o:-Y 
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.J THE ftNANClAl STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EflDEO 31 ST MARCH, 202 1 

.LJ!!;...fil,Qoificant Accounting Polic;les {contd.} 

20 Measurement of fai r values 

A number of the Companies accounting policies and disclosures require the measu<ement of 
fair values, for both financial and non- financial assets and liabil ities. 

The Company has an established co1trol framework with respect to the measurement of fair 
values. Thi s includes a valuation team that has overall responsibi1ilY for overseeing all 
significant fair value measurements, including l evel 3 fair values, and reports di rectly to the 
Chief Financial Officer. 

The valuation team <egulady reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation 
adjustments. If thi rd party information, such as broker quotes o r pricing services, is used to 
mea£ure fair values, the11 the valuation lP..am ;i<;<;p<;<;p<; th@ t>vid~tice obtained from the third 
parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requi rements of Ind AS, 
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified. 

Fair values are categorised into difft , enc levels in a fai r value hierarc;hy based on the inputs 
used in the valuation techniques as follows: 

Level 1: Qvoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for ident ical assets or l iabilities 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted Pr ices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

l evel 3: inputs for the asset o r l iability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs) 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a l iability, the Company uses observable market 
data as far as possible. If the inputs Jsed to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall 
inlO dlff~rent levels of the fai r value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement i s categorised 
in its enci, ety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as che lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measuremel'll. 

The Company recognises transfers t etween levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
, eporting period during wh ich the change has occurred. 
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,t. PRIVATE LIMITED 
,S TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021 

In Runees 

;<e 3: Current Tax Asseu As at As at 
-:i 1st March 20n 31st Mar<'h 202n. 

J l 1ncome Tax (Net of Provisions} 61.74. 732 23.09.542 

I ITotal EP .. ~ 732 2.3. M S42 

Note 4 : lnvtntorles As at As at 
31st ~1 ·"-.. .. ,.,., 3 1s t M,w ·h 2020 

Raw Mate,1a1s 9.41.9},$94 5,6 1,98,228 

Woric.- in-progress 1.63,69.929 91, 11,072 

Finished GOOCIS 4,S4,14.025 4,08,12.S30 

Stores and Spares 2,2S,2S,I Ss 2 , 71'4,34,468 

Tot~I I " 8S 03 002 1-:i .. ~ S6 299 

S. l No inve.ntone.s were p!edgl?d .is stcurit'f for Uab1 lties. d111ing the. cutrent 3J'ld compar<t'lblt per1od. 
S.2 ~ 11 amount of 1nvemoruis w~ri: written down 10 t1et rc.il i)J,tble \'alue dt:tln9 ,~e (um:nl and -comparable pcri(ld. 
Slm1la1ly, Nil l'lmo-.uu of reve,sal of write. dtYNn was .iccounttd (iufirtg 1he current and comp.11a.01e pe<1oos. 

Note s : nade Receivables Asat As at 
31 St March 2021 31st Maf<h. 2020 

Secured. Considl?(Cd Good - -
Unsecured, Considered Good 17,68,•9.428 14,94,0 I ,<;86 

5i9n1fic.an1 increase in Credit Risk 
Credit lm pai(td 1.97.61.429 1,59,6 1.429 

Less: t nss Allowance ( 1 97 6 1.42:9' ll 59 61 429\ 

Total , ., .:::3 49 428 I""'" A1 .;,36 

Note 6: Cash and cash equivalents As at As at 
31St March 2021 .31st March 2020 

c~sh on hand 53,458 46.006 

Sanks Balances 11,o0,SlS 18,67.480 

Tot-11 .... 13 993 1'." .... 488 

Note 7: Loans Asat As at 
31 ° ....... 20 2 1 31 st Ma·· .. '>020 

Ul'\Secu,ed and Consid<:ted Cood 
Secuttty Deposits 7,04,725 6,41,725 

Total 7"0 4 725 641 725 

Note 8: Other Current Assets As at As at 
3 1st Ma(C" ,.,..,,, 31 St Match 2:02:"' 

Onsecu,ed and Consider«! Good-

Balam:cs with hl(hrec;t Tax Authorities S 1.28.008 36.S6,780 

P,epaid Expenses 17,22,130 18. 76,424 

Other Re<eivable 2,3S,671 S,420 

TMlll zo~ar 55 38.6..M... 



,POL PRIVATE LIMITED 
/ TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31 ST MARCH 2021 

Note 9: Share Capital 

I. Aulhorised Share Cap,c-i.l (lb) 
Ptir Value ~ Shue (Rs) 
Number of E.q\l•tY Shares 

2.tuued, Subsn,bed and Fully Paid up (R.s) 

Pat Value Pfr Sh.Ve {RS) 
Number of [q1,,11ty Sha"s 

3 Omalls or Shareholders holding more than 5% of 
Shi.res· 

K.tnsaa NerOIJ.< Paints llrtl'lte..i 

4. Aggregated !'lumber of bonu:. share ,ssutd <hmng 
tht pertocJ of fwe yea(S immetlialely pre<cding Cht 
reoomng d11e bv c:apitahsatlon ot s«u111y premn.rn 
rutrw 

A.$ at 
.l l st March, 2021 

" 
99.90 

S,00,00,000 
10 

so,99,poo 

2.99,S2,000 

10 
29 9S 200 

No of 
Shares 

2QQ~.,~ 

N,I 

In RupttS 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

" 
99.99 

S,00,00,000 
10 

S989 ooo 

2,99,S2,000 

10 
29 95 200 

' 
No of 

Shates 

29.95.199 

s, Th, comp41ny has issued ont class or $ha.res, Lt. e<1u1rv shares, which enjoys similar rights in respect of 

voting, payment of dividend and reoayment of cap\t:i.1. On Winding up of the Company, the holders o( CQVity 

Sl\arH will bt entit.t«f to re«.ve tht rt'Sidua.l ••Hts of the Companv. rtmlfn,ng a.fter distribution of all 

prtfttent1al amoums 1n p1opomon to tht number or equiry \h.\fts held. 

G. ~@con(iliatlon of the numbi!:1 or sharu outstanding, 

Number of shares at the beginning of the yea., 
hlUtd dunng lht ye¥ 

29,95.200 

Number or shares at the e nd of the yP:ir 29,9S.200 29.9S1200 

1 C.lp,tal Management; 
Fo, the purPos.t of the Cot'l'lpaoy's oonal ma.nagement. c:ap1til tndudes 1uued e-(lultv shue <i.P1tal a nd au 
Other equ,ry ruerves a1tt1bt,1t1;ble to tht equity hddtrs of tht Company. 11,t Company's policy iS to maintain 
a strong capital ba'Se so as to mainti'lrn investor, c;reditor and market conf1den<e and to sum11n rutwe 
d t velopment of lht bvsinbs. Ma.nagen,em monilors the return on capital, M well as tht levels of dividends 
to tquit·f s.hartho!de!'s. lht Compan.v 1, nol svbJt:ct to any e>cttm,,Uy lmpostd ci.p1tal requirements, 
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.<IVATE LIM ITED 
J THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31 ST MARCH 2021 

In Rupees 

/ 3: Borrowings As at As at 
31st March, 202 l 31st March, 2020 

Working Capital Loan B,34,37,622 14,20,04,82 5 

Total 8,34.37 ,622 14.20,04,82 5 

lote 14: Trade Payables As at As at 
3 1st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

Trade Payables 
Payables to Micro and Small Enterprises" - -
Payables to Others 24.10 .80,396 12,32,73,779 

Total 24,10,80.396 12.32,73 .779 

· Based on the information and explaination av3ilable with maoagement, there are no amounis due to the 
suppliers covered under the Micro. Small and Ned,um Enterprises Development Act. 2006. 

~ote 1 S: Other Financial Liabilities As at AS at 
31st March, 202 1 31st March, 2020 

Trade Deposits 33.94.340 32,44,340 

Creditors for Capital Goods 1.32,380 1,28,775 

Total 35,26.720 3373 11 5 

,ote 16: Other Current Liabil ities As at As at 
31st March , 2021 31st March, 2020 

Other Statutory Payables 7,68,827 9,49.852 

Trade Receivables with Credit Balance ,_ 9,69,886 

Total 7 68,827 19, 19,738 

~ote 17: Provisions As at As at 
31 <t M>rrh 2n2 I 31st March 2020 

Provis.ion for Compensated Absences 3,11 ,063 6,54.845 

Provision for Gratuity II .87,960 24.08.320 

Provision for lndirec, Taxes 1,57,91,632 -
Total 1,72,90,655 30 63.1 65 



F7•"n ,.,n, r ~~~6\HE FINANCIAL STATIMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021 

Note 18: Revenue from Operations Year ended Year ended 
3 1 St March. 2021 31st March. 2020 

Sale of Pr'Oducts 57,8 1,69,877 58.86.80.503 

Other Operating Revenues 
~ le of Scrap 18,79525 13.93, 155 

Others 4,457 -
18,83.982 13,93,155 

Total 58 00 53.859 59 02 73 659 

Note 19: Other Income Year ended Year ended 
3 1st M::irrh '021 31st Maren ;,:o:.io 

Interest Income 
ln:erest on Loans and Oe;:iosh - 29.76? 

Total - 29 767 



.roL P"R.l\'ATE UMfTEO 
/TIS TO THE FINANCIAL STATI:MENTS f Oi. PERIOD ENDED 31~T MARCH: 20 21 

, i,,•41• 20· Coit~ Maltrl•l~ Co11S1m1«J Yt•r ended Y••H w6i!d 
31nMarc.h 2n21 3h"l M<1rd• 2020 

Rir.- M~:tri,ll Co'l,u.nt<I 

0 1>tnm9 51.0(k. ~."1.2;,2118 s .z •.s7.l61 

Add 1'11lrll.:IS4> ·12.0•1.42".Sl<I J8.Q;,17,6SS 
l e~, Ch»i,.-,g St<0clt <>ii'.<:.t·-- S ◄?'2S1&.S 

38,3'4.63.l l 0 37.7!1,79.S28 
P.1(k.ltig !.\ot,en;JJ Con)llmcO 

Op<',,.,11 Stock 14,12,1161 l lJi t .181? 
Add. 1'v1<ha,c, I ,lJ,J0..4911 1,39,98,<180 
ltn Oo,,11G Siodl 2",S!U-'Z 1'1.12.981 

1.23,H.llG 1,38.66.686 

Tol,1 "",<" , 7 , .. i 39 136!; 215. 

"'1:1tt 21: Ch11~cs lt1 lrwcntorlu of tiriishcd Cooch, StocSHt'I• 
uad'.c 1111d 'l/~ ¥11'1 p,,0911tu 

()ptr..119 S(O(k 
Fi....,~Go11ch ◄,08 ,12,SJ0 ... 01.2~.s,-, 
\ll'01'l(-in- t1rog101 91. 11,on aJ.Si',SSl 

4,99.23.6-0;? <l ,!.10,&Z,U0 
Lcw Oos .,,9 s:ock 

fll'li~MdC::Q()1h ◄,S4, H,02S .t.,QS..11.S30 
<,Vo..1'~!!1•,(lU'i.)ftS<. 1.63:.6!>,ii!I 91. ll .0i'l 

6,li'. lll,!H4 ,1 ,99,23,602 

r o1al (I ,111,G0,)SZ) (3,41 ,◄72) 



.POL PRIVATE LIMITED 
trES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021 

Note 22 Empk,yee BeMnts Expense Ytarendtd Ynrtndtd 
l)St Match 21\"1 1 30th M•r,..h 2020 

SJ.la, 1e, and Waqes 3,60,8S.905 l.60.◊9.IS9 
CorurlbuttOn to Provident and Other Funds 35,09,212 69,32,447 
Staff Wtll,1,e f.xpens.e 20,42,911 26,48,529 

•oul 4 16,. ".,. .._ cc Dn 135 

Note 23: Finance Cost Year ended Year ended 
'.3 h ·t March 2011 30th March 2020 

lntmst on bonowings 97.S2.14S 1.13.59. 129 

Tout ......... , .. 
I I 1' 59 129 

Note 24: Deprtciatlon and Amortisation Year ended Year ended 
':I: 1st March ,nn 30•h " •••• 2020 

Oe1>1tCi.ltion on Propercv, Plant and Equipment 1,20,27,928 1.07,71,361 
Amortlsu,on on Olht1 tnt~g1ble Mseu l,S7,54) l.S7.S43 

Tow 12••" .. ~~ I ....n 2& 90" 

Note 2S: Other Expenses Year ended Year ended 
11st March 2n,1 30•h u •• ~ 2020 

Con~um&Xl()fl of s,oni &nd $«>a.rt Pans 1,25,81.232 1.31 ,06,851 
Powe, Mid Fuel 2,◄5,17,073 2,45,52,140 
Rtoa1,s to Suiktingi 1,29,016 4.<M.63l 
Rtoal,s to MachinetY 56,01,721 67,96,687 
rre1gh1 and Forn•arding Charges I ,9b.)0. I I I 2. l 4,0::0,766 
Advenlserne,n 3nd Salu P1omot1on 17,S6.675 7,0•,0S9 
Rent 31.0S.• 11 2 1,90,$13 
Le<1al & Profe.ssiona.l Fees 23,38,406 16.72.698 
t,,sur,nce 17.19.172 13.75.923 
\11scttl~neous Exp,en~s 2.64.t7.ll1 2.42, 11,790 

Tota1 9. 71/l 1 '- 074 0 "'462 3.57 

Note 25.1: Payment to Statutory Auditors' 

Auditors' Re:mune,-.tton Utcluding Strvict Tait/CST (lnclt..:cled 1n Miscellaneous hptnitS in Nole 2S} 

As Audltot 
S1a1U(ory Avcht fees 4.GU90 

Report under Sc<ti-On ◄◄AS of tht ln<otne ta>c A<t, 1 961 . 
In other capacity 
Cnr,flc1tlon 18,133 
Others 
To _5 

•.68.890 

-
58,133 

-
-s 27 023 

/f\ .11 
~ 



.<ARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 3 1ST MARCH 2021 

In Rupees 

Note 26: Contingent Uabilitits a.rtd commitmerus (t,) the 
YUftnded Year ended 

extent not provided fo,) 
3 1st March, 202 1 31st Match, 2020 

Cl alms against the Company not acknowledged as debt: 

Sales Tax & Income Tax 68,96,917 96,66,943 
nie Company has made adequate provisions in th- ac:covnls 
for claims against the Company related to dilCCl 1md indirect 
taxes matters. except for <:crt~in claims: not acknoNledged as 
deba, and Assessment Year 20 17-20 I 3 Rs . l I ,62.<160!- LE:SS 
~2~ Paid R.~. 2,32,4921- = 929968 
&o.lC$ TQX 

Ainoum 1otalling to Rs. 59.66,949/ - from the 5.:1.les. Ta,: 
,\uthorhles, a demand of sales tax for non-submiss on of Fortn 
'C' fo r the year 2004· 05, 
Income Tax. 
The Company's management is of the opinion that ultimate 
ltablliry in respect of these litigations ~hall nol havt any 
matenal a dverse effect on the Company's Oper.iti on and 
tinanciat pos ition, 

Excise 27,S0,923 27,50,923 

11.pp~al No, E/ I I 5/20 11 Md E/579/201 I Against ◊IA No. 
COA/CEX/CSK/ 1 I J & 114 Ot.30.11. l O - Excise dutv difference 
of Hlma,chal Ptadesh 8addl 

Duty and Interest I, I 4,&S.:246 1.06,99.00S 
Oury &, Interest to 1>e paid for non- fulfilment or E'<PlHt 
Obligation against EPCG licence No 730001054/ 1.~.20 10 ;>incl 
1730001054/15.9.2010 as ocr lctte-1 no S-99!25/i.016 -A1>P9 
(Cr• 7)4896 ch 6.8.2019 

Corporate guarantee 
Coumer Cuarantees 10 bank in ,espect of Bank Guau.mees 3S.34,000 3S,34,000 
Issued to government authorities and others 

Leu er of Credh opened with HDFC Bank. Margao, Goa - S3,11,84S 

2,46,10,086 3,20,28,11 9 

Note 27; Earnings Per Equity Shate Year ended Year ended 
31st March 202 1 31st March 2020 

Numerator: 

Profit attributable to Equitv Shareholders(" in Crore~) 2,62,83,834 2,89,66,835 

Denominator: 
Weighted Average Numb-er of ordina rv shares at the 
be.ginning and e nd o( the year 

29,9S,200.00 29,9S,200.00 

Basic and Diluted Earnincis cie r Enultv Share (inf) 8.78 9 .67 
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. PRIVATE LIMITED 
1 TO 'lrtE f l NANOAL STATEMENTS FOR PERJ0O EN0E'0 :!lST MARCH 2021 

.1.9· (ioaocial IG>trU.m!f!ll.i~Ullcl BM; Mil}?,QCIT'~Jll.lQIWW 

fin~nci;.I Risk M;an;a;tM@l'lt 

tile (omi:,.,.nv h11~ cxp1nunt 10 1110 fol!ow1r.g r1~k$ .ll1~1n;, f1om fm1nc111I in~ltumcrih. 
- Ct~dit Rilk 
- Liq1.1i4ily lt.>Sk 
- M.trkct .itlsk 

(I) Risk Man119cme.nt Ft.Hl\t',r;(lfk 

Risk M;11,~♦IN'M ~l~c ovtrsees the l'r!.t1111~~"1 of thes~ risks, Mlll\i;l'Jn)Qn: , , l~ppaned bv Risk M11n:,9cmcnl Committ« tMI.Wvisu on 
1111.tt1e1;il risks ,tt1d :ht .lOj)l'Ol)tl:ite llfl~clal rlst( gu.,e,n~n(e fr11nw.vork for 1llc Com~•,v. The ltlc1k 1.1>,1.n119cmc11t Committee p,Ovldes .1.ss1,1<1n<e to ioe 
m11n~,:mer.( 11!,1.1 Comp:uiv's mk 11e1Mdcs ;are 9i)Vll:ft1Cd by 11ppr,3pn111,: pohdcs and p1occduro .wd that firian<ill ,lst<s .lfol kft1'1if<E'd. me.is1.1r11d 11n:I 
man1111NI il'I ll(tor<luocc with chc Comp11~•s poli(iU 11nd rhk 0-bjttdv-cs . 

Thi: Comp~ny•s Shsk Ma~tmer,1 Pol!cti:~ :ire ut11>!!H1cd 10 lderclfy and 11Nlys.es the 1isks faced by tht Comiw•v to set &l,\l>f~1• ~k l..m!u ;irn! 
cor,UQh &11d co mor..:ior rtiks :iml :idltcrtnce t-0 lrmln. lfok Mllr119tm1:r,1 Politic~ J.n6 SySttfl'IS i 1e ft'<W~ ,egulaoll)' to reflec1 dungu In rnafUt 
\onditiOns atU.f tl!ot Compo,ny'i i.ctivilics. The ,COmp111'1')', !:hrou<Jh it1> tl'aining. &"14 1"1.ll'lit!ltintn; st;inMrds ar..d praud11rcs, .:.ims to m.,;in1111n ,1 
d ,,<ipllntd 11nd constnJctflo't' (Ontt'OI tw.llt(ll'l~Ol Ill ~tii~h all Ml~Q'rt(!S u11dt1St<1nd (htlr rolu 
:.ind obligatlo111. 

(II) C1tdlt ll1$k 

C1tdl1 R1$k Is cht rtsl( Of fina11<ial loss to tht Comi,,1.11v 1f i <ustorrefor <OUl'lttr~ny to :i fln:incu.l 1.111m1rr..tnt fa.di to m,:111 ti$ conuactu,d obr:ig11tior,s . 
,ln(l i.n scs 11nncip:1Uy tro•n 1llt C'O.'"l).ltty'$ rt.:e1v-,1.blt<( tl'l)m C\1$t>~rs, loaM ~nd lm·uirr-ents en debt securll!es. lhc e11rryin11 J.ll'IUunb of finunoa.l 
~Heh 1tp1t1>tn111!c m:iJC!murn credit f'lsk cJCpowrt, 

Tu.de Rtctiv.tblu &t\d loll.tis: 

The co,np:ii11-y'~ t)(l)OS\lloi: lo (h!<lil lisk i'> i-Mltl·MCcd mi.inly bv th< ifld!vh.lUU (hiUt'l(ttr1$1i(S. of O<h c1mamtr 'fhc RM( M~~cmcn.: Commiuet fin 
es1:iib11ihcd;, c~t1 PO~ Y t;d(lttwl"(h t:i,h new <ustoMer 1s 11n;i'i'$td indMdu:il!v farc.rt=d1t\vonl11nus l!eforc the Comp1ny's ,~nd:vd p.1ymt11t ,a11d 
dtlivtrv tctnu :ind co,xu1.anJ. .;arc ()ffvr«I. nie Com~ny'i tcYW,'lnch.,d,ci f11111nci11I ~141cm!:11ts, ctedi1 119,encv informa1ion, indust,y mtor~liO<'I ,1,1<1 
in i.o.tl\lt USt$ batik. 1cfc1e:itci.. ~h:~ fimih a,.,. establuhed 101 ca<h cu~lomec 11nd 1E-vitwc(I 
lO!'ISl ,l;ntl'( An',' <(IIS.S ex(,cedin,g ti10i-t hfrlots , ~QIU~ 11pp,Ova.J fl~ tht 111:i.ui.tme,n 

Fina:1<1i1 (nst(ll l'l1@nh :uid Ca.sh Oel)(l)it., 

(1',)dlt rl~kli from blilMI(~~ with l)ltlk:S .llfl(l f.11an(iiil h1Stlt\l'IIO'IS •S IYllll'llgtd by th$ (l'l~llrry's lrusury Department \II =ord11r.cc y,;,th the 
Comp,11n'(') ~olicy. lnvurmtnU of svrp!,.u fund~ aN mule onfy \\i:h .:ipl)roved coun.:ell)llrt1cs .:and within acdit limi!i. 11>1>islncd to l!J.(l'l <Oul'!tttl)artv 
The limits .1.,e i.et 10 m.nimls,: the con<cnuatlO<'I of nsks and 1he1do~ mih$1::r.1e firia-1 Ion thro\lilh t0Ur>terva,1•{s ;>Ottllli.a.l fa;llu,t 10 n'l.lk.• 
p.t)OllltlU~ 

-010 L111u ldlW IUsk 
Llquid ttv 1hk. h the risk 1h.lt 111, <;omp;i.nvwm e11C()llfll~rd;ff1culn in moc1,n9 che obli9<11Uotr$ ,1uou~t~ with tts fin:inc1-1! habl11110 th,u 11rc )cl!ied by 
Gt'!ivtllf'I!) «.Sh o, lll".Othtt fiN1nc14l 11uc1. The Comp1111'($ ,1;pp101ch ?O ffl,'11'1:191"9 liquv.hlv IS'" erisure. U f.u .U puniblt, 1h31 ii \..ul h.lV't su1ti(il!l11 
!iqu~(f'( 10 meet ilS liabihtio when they llli' due, u11de1 00th no,m::r.l J..nd !ttthtd (wlditiWI$. witl>(lVl i!l(1,1((j1>9 un,il.(.((!t)l~ble los.s•, or 11$klng 
<l<ln'lll9oC 10 1hc COl'lll),llly') ,~pu(atiOl'I, 

M.l11.!liUu of E111411cl;al tlllbil.1~s· 
Tht 1:iibkt bO;l<lw illll,.f)t \h,e Cornpsny') finen.<il.11'-lb!IIUC) i11to 1cev,:1>\ 1NIUrir19 ,;irouping b,u,ed <on th,cl, (01>\r,1,<tvill tna.Wr'ili.ts 

U•J'.l M11rltc1 ltl~k 

Oo, 
dern;ind 

8 4 \7622 
14 00 

~ rn¢.11tlis to 6 l"IOnUI$ 1 yu,r 10 3 ~" ;and 
~ mo11:h, to I Y".ll' 2 ye..11r, :iibo.,... 

M~«et ti»: is tht rnk th111 1hc fair v11!ut o f f1m11<.' osll flO'.-.'S of ;i fu,11nci;il 111.mumcn1 w1!1 D-Jct11;a1t btnusc of changes Ir. rn,11kt1 p rices. M.uke1 price 
comorl~i>S tluu, l'fl)h of rhlo: 1ntcrc,1 111te ,isk. cu~()' rnk .ud 01hcr pficc risk, w<h ,u cquw, prict nsk an~ <omtt'fOditv prKe risk. The obit<ti"1! 
Ol m:irkc1 t!sk mll!U!J'eol'l\'1'11 k t◊ nlil/l<iojt .l.ot<l «lt\UOl m.ukct 1ht txpowro \"1'lhin ,1(.(E-plubl,: p,,n11ntl t r1>, wlri!t Optin,iti11C tltt 1,l(\111\, in rtSl)t<-\ Of 
m!Mletll..l"( ~HCU 0,11d !;.t,b!lithi!S c-tnnmll'l~\O;~ In fo~ci~•l (jl {(f!l(ks. the c o,t1v,a.,1 v's J)Olicy IS ({I (!l'IS<l(,t l.h;it Its flt\ (!)lj){l~urt 1$ ktjlt to~" M.CIIPt:lb!o 
lt'tcl. 
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, PNVAlt t1M1no 
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,.,.., \'ah1a.1!11n 1e chnlq11, s1011lfl<•1tt u11obiorvll>lo 1R(tl•r$IIOMl!lp bttw~n ,... .. ~tlOll( 'fll(1!H-blt rno,;u ~ fat: •'f·~, muw, ....... , 

-Olhr, HOii ,C,.,,,ftfll l.Ht6 t)lj(Otlfl!t'# (aJII llowJ · T ... n/,..,..., m<><l•I • ,.,,. ,a.,1An,....1,.-.. n11• Ge:i!t"111!1, ;tct.)fll)tS ifl~ht .tMVl;i lt~f>J,o: !l!<)IMl\·r,«, I\ 
1mt,t,f)<,.1m,e111•td.:.1 O •'>~lift,.t'>t v oMt. J,(0«1i1llllcd , 1m1~r(II,\* !fl 
, mnrtluR,o,c C'fe-um >'.:tht ol Oil«<"' ft(t lle•'N mt- • lo1tv,11 l,1;».9,w."' mot9i. o,u,. ""'9"· 

dl~00>n1~~'A~ ~-00<\Jtt d~<-t11, • ~1$~..:lll"Cl'ltll! dl1(ou•~tl'.I 
, .. 1 .. l it 

Cll"~fl\lf"'I '.,.....,.' • la Th• r.,, •,~!111i ol «,.~IIAtt:!(i"' ,ot~oli<~blt ""' ~•-~oJ:I• 
m111...,11.,~ , .,.,u,,.lj,.,,! .,.,i:, 11 l>htcl o,, dlt llOI UU( 

~1111 fNol.V'I o ,hi.ii t,, 1l,oi»11c:> ,:(f.►.t>c 

"'"'""' E.,,,i ..... , '" ..... p.e.11111,.; 
\lt«Mt<'O .. \ at r .. t. .. :• $,,.o-lt',.1•.N~'I 
!te<'Ut/111 (lot P,l(t •" ,,.,_~hi;):+ IHIH:l "lU 
,u.\>t ft.110,tf !>flh$ of M\1111)1 fund flld tll, 
l)l'ICt.:tl ,.J'IO: h1 .. 011 .. m,,,1~m Sli~h ""'" 
t,on, 11,, 1,,10~101s 

,c.,,,.,""' ""\{,~t (If u i h ,illd (~Sh «Nl.;)\tlllS. ;,;,,;k •t«l•w/o. lo.,n, "I><> tall• fi"l'""' ...... , 31\l W.:Ul, lOll .. ,<1 11,: w .. Jo, lOlO ,\jljl1<)~~•1tt II>< i,;, vlhlt. C!!lottl'l(t 
1>,1 ..... , .. """""(I ._,,,,. lml •,;, .,.z .. tt Of Oliff! dOjlOSlll. ~l"")f\tt{I w,n(~S .. 1111 l»l•,I<•, ""'~ u,,.,,.,.,.; n,, .... ..,1,., ,, ... n .... a,,Wil•~ ""' ~ow:,"'""' hbSt~_..,,tlt 
...... , .. ,..i ~I -~•Otll>~ (ol.l h ~ >l;,!i(t(,11>! ;,. OJ~ <)I ~o ""11,s jlltsonw, 



ot D: Se51menc. Ri!portlng 

e m1t pan•,.-, . ppro•..-ed t:i~• the e,1;1;i d a· [f ms. the r,,mctlan ,o ailorrm::n 
s ~rn the Cornp.111~·- Con der1 n.g i'il rform , (r~o,ue-r. r;y 
~ l~ e:cls.mn , the Corl"1 an" h a Ope a ·ny D-ec ~i 1 
ctl ng {l.agerrr n orrnni ne.e. ~ pres nr d to the 
11-t ~ i and f .fJr the JJ -fJJt)Ses of n ra ng pl.an Is 

ca d '-'il Campany. As th conrp a lls. , •ithi ~ s.tngl 
b J e ' bscanti,,lly being m the d , ..:Jal 5t. ~ement a L· 

reflecti~<e of atJ 08 • tr' {1 g S grr. e ts , 

st. u'.ur un r th Mier , Small i.lr:d Mediu Enterpri ~s De'tt' opme t A t, Z-00'3- arc provided ~ 111'/d r f1;.1r the'( ;:i 

202 -21. to th• e>1~n th C r:ianv has rec11-h-~d lnumii,i un frarn th!!- ·s.uppll r~· regar,;l"ng their ,;1 ws. unc:ir.:r' . e .r..-ct, 

(Ii> nt r ~i paid by the Compan•t I r ns of s.~(,tiari 16 of rhe Mier◊, 
Small .ind d11,1m Erlt>erpri ~s. Dev I p ent t 2.D06, ;:i,l1;111g-w01 
the arnr11.m o: th pa•~· 1!1'1 mad e to th 

pplter b~and "1.41 a pot ted dav du ing the p ri.:_:... 

( IIJ In er-est • le f<:ir e p rod maJ!-ir"r · pa, 11n1 
r ... ,h~r::h ~ut b~ond the: Nng ihe 
r;,eriod Ing nte-r s.t sped ro, m.al 
and M s Act 20□6. 

[iv) f hc.: .)lr'llount ti-'f' imeres • t'crued ~n(l , ematn ng u paid • , i! end t.-f 
each ccoun · ng ye 

,; ..,) 111 • • and payabl,e o.1err l 1:1 th succee ing year~, 
e inte.res.t d i,:a; .as .abo\'~ .i e a.ccuall•,- pi!.ld to 

t 
I Entr:-rprlses a,..~ bei!n 

an ger e 

N41t 32: 
rf!'l'10 U'i period fia 1.J r~s ha..,e b n e- . ro1,1p,ed / e - I $SH1ed \ 1~tiever n r"i:::s.sary to form c rrem ii,eriod's 
1ass.tflcat11:1n. 

'c- , 
Mer o;m1: 2(m M.iy :zo:JS . 

1, m .g N . (}305"1W .. .., . = ~ 
UDIN ll ~ b ~ ~ I ~ AfiAE M~q.15 

1-'lar;: . Marr, :10, coa 
o.a .e: 2"9th rl I. 20~ ' 

For and on behalf ·of ,;he IB.oa. r;l ,... 

ri:, tor , 

~/t l loJ 
1 

\,•~\~J/~-,--; 
' 1\~~n~dlkcr 

D. rectc-
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If J rf}l_±:-
G.T, Ca-.i ar"-1:a.n 
Oiri!!Cr::o.t 
DlN 08105 268 


